ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. THE DEFENDANT ADMITTED CONDUCT PROHIBITED BY WEST 
VIRGINIA CODE §61-5-17(c) (GIVING FALSE INFORMATION TO A 
POLICE OFFICER), BUT WAS CHARGED ONLY UNDER WEST VIRGINIA 
CODE §61-5-17(a). THE CIRCUIT COURT INCORRECTLY FOUND THAT 
THIS CONDUCT WAS ALSO UNLAWFUL UNDER THE LATTER 
SUBSECTION. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This was a prosecution for obstructing an officer [West Virginia 

Code §61-5-1 7 (a)] which originated in the Magistrate Court of Marion 

County. The Petitioner was found guilty in a bench trial in Magistrate 

Court and sentenced to 10 days in jail (time served) plus $165.80 Court 

costs. The Petitioner appealed to the Circuit Court. 

A bench trial was held on 24 November 2010 before Hon. Fred L 

Fox, II, Senior Status Judge, and by order entered 1 March 2011 (AR 1), 

the Circuit Court affirmed the Magistrate Court. 

The defendant seeks reversal of her conviction and dismissal. 

obstructing an officer as set out in West Virginia Code §61-5-17(a). 

The Circuit Court again found the petitioner guilty. The court made 

a written fmding of fact regarding the defendant's conduct which was 

consistent with the testimony of the deputy sheriff. 



"3. At the bench trial before the Circuit Court, the State called 
Marion County Deputy Sheriff Christopher F. Gearde to 
testify. He testified that on 26 May 2010, he went to the 
Defendant's residence in Marion county to execute an arrest 
warrant upon Phillip Moran for violation of home confinement 
in a felony case. The Defendant and Phillip Moran were 
romantically linked at the time and Mr. Moran had given the 
Defendant's residence as his own address. While standing on 
the front porch, Deputy Gearde asked the Defendant if Mr. 
Moran was inside the residence. The Defendant denied his 
presence in the home. This exchange repeated multiple times. 
Another deputy then heard a noise within the structure and 
advised Deputy Gearde. Upon Deputy Gearde entering the 
residence, the Defendant then admitted that Phillip Moran 
was there. Mr. Moran was found in the residence and taken 
into custody. Deputy Gearde noted that the Defendant was 
not abusive and made no physical act to oppose him. The 
Defendant did not dispute Deputy Gearde's testimony." (AR 2 
- 3) 

Moreover, the fmding of fact was never opposed. Defendant's 

counsel noted in opening: 

Just to give the Court an advanced idea of what's going on, 
the Defendant's not going to contest any of the facts. The 
argument here is whther the - what she did, which was deny 
that her boyfriend was in the how when he [the deputy] was 
looking for - - to pick him up when he really was in there, 
whether that is a violation of the statute. (AR 9) 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

The Defendant's admitted conduct of lying to a police officer without 

physically opposing him in any way is specifically prohibited by a statute 

which was not charged. The rules of statutory construction and the Rule 

of Lenity prevent a conviction under the wrong statute. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Because the principal issues in this case involve well settled rules of 

statutory construction and the Rule of lenity, oral argument under Rev. 

R.A.P. 18(a) is not necessary unless the Court determines that other 

issues arising upon the record should be addressed. If the Court 

determines that oral argument is necessary, this case is appropriate for a 

Rule 19 argument and disposition by memorandum decision. 

ARGUMENT 

1. THE DEFENDANT ADMITTED CONDUCT PROHIBITED BY WEST 
VIRGINIA CODE §61-S-17(c) (GIVING FALSE INFORMATION TO A 
POLICE OFFICER), BUT WAS CHARGED ONLY UNDER WEST VIRGINIA 
CODE §61-S-17(a). THE CIRCUIT COURT INCORRECTLY FOUND THAT 
THIS CONDUCT WAS ALSO UNLAWFUL UNDER THE LATTER 
SUBSECTION. 
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West Virginia Code § 61-5-17 provides, in pertinent part: 

(a) Any person who by threats, menaces, acts or 
otherwise, forcibly or illegally hinders or obstructs, 
or attempts to hinder or obstruct, any law 
enforcement officer acting in his or her official 
capacity is guilty of a misdemeanor . 

* * * 

(c) Any person who, with intent to impede or 
obstruct a law-enforcement officer in the conduct 
of an investigation of a felony offense, knowingly 
and willfully makes a materially false statement, is 
guilty of a misdemeanor . .. However, the 
provisions of this section do not apply to 
statements made by a spouse, parent, stepparent, 
grandparent, sibling, half-sibling, child, stepchild 
or grandchild, whether related by blood or 
marriage, of the person under investigation.... 

Your Petitioner has never denied her conduct. When asked by 

I?eputy Gearde if her then-boyfriend Mr. Moran was in her residence, she 

denied his presence until another officer heard noises within the 

residence. 

In this case, the question is not whether your Petitioner acted like a 

good citizen. She did not. For whatever it may matter, your Petitioner 

realized pretty quickly that her behavior was unacceptable. That does 

not change the fact that she did it. 

Nor does your Petitioner get away from this affair unstained. This 
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is a lady who had never been in any trouble and who had made a 

memorably poor decision regarding someone with whom to undertake a 

romantic relationship. She served 10 days in jail and will never get those 

10 days back. 

Neither is it even a question about whether it should be illegal to lie 

to police officers or constitutional to prohibit that conduct.. West Virginia 

Code §61-5-17(c) prohibits materially false statements to police officers 

other than state police. West Virginia Code §15-2-16 prohibits lying to 

the state police. While this Court has not dealt with the issue in the 

Code §61-5-17(c) realm, it has done so with regard to Code §15-2-16 with 

the implicit approval of that charge as an offense against the State. E.g., 

State v. Strock, 201 W.Va. 190,495 S.E.2d 561 (1997), State v. Milburn, 

204 W.Va. 203, 511 S.E.2d 828 (1998). 

That being said, the State used the equivalent of a concept of "that's 

close enough" to stretch the law here to cover what the Defendant 

actually did but as not charged with. Had the defendant been charged 

under West Virginia Code § 61-5-17(c), she would have been convicted. 

She was not. She was charged under § 61-5-17(a). (AR 5) 

It is long been the law West Virginia that the state can modify 

misnomers and trivialities where no prejudice is worked to the defendant. 

5 




E.g., State v. Thompson, 26 W.Va. 149 (1885). But it is also a part of the 

law of West Virginia but once the trial commences, we cannot adjust the 

charges to fit the evidence. In State v. Noll, 672 S.E.2d 142 (W.Va., 2008), 

a defendant was charged with breaking without uttering entering, but the 

evidence at trial proved that he had really committed a nighttime 

burglary. A bit of tinkering with the indictment cured that difference at 

the trial court level, but this Court reversed. That defendant was 

prepared to defend against one charge, but not the one that was 

substituted. 

That is similar to what happened in the instant case. This 

Defendant committed conduct which violates a statute. But she wasn't 

start charged with violating that statute. She was charged with violating 

a different statute. The Rule of Lenity requires that before someone "can 

be punished as a criminal... his case must be plainly and unmistakably 

within the provisions of some statute." Report for Congress, Statutory 

Interpretation: General Principles and Recent Trends, Congressional 

Research Service, 1997, quoting United States v. Gladwell, 243 U.S. 476, 

485 (1917). It follows necessarily that this be the statute that the 

defendant is charged with violating. 

Shoehorning your Petitioner's behavior into the wrong statute 
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simply does not work. The ancient maxim Indusio unius est exclusio 

alterius seems to apply. While it is rather common to suggest that the 

West Virginia Legislature acts with less than meticulous care, 

nevertheless it is the Legislature that writes the statutes, it is the 

statutes which drive the criminal law and the Legislature is entitled to 

the respect that it knows what it is doing. We must presume that the 

Legislature had a rational reason to enact West Virginia Code § 61-5

17(c). That reason is simple. Lying to officers, while uncivil behavior, 

wasn't yet illegal. Where it is possible, we do not dismiss statutory 

language as mere surplusage. By dealing with the issue of lying to police 

officers specifically, the Legislature has invoked another rule of statutory 

construction. "When one statute speaks to a subject in a general way and 

another deals with a part of the same subject in a more specific manner, 

the two should be harmonized if possible, and where they conflict, the 

latter prevails. Peerless Ins. Co. v. County ofFairfax, 274 Va. 236, 244, 

645 S.E.2d 478, 483 (2007). Clearly, it was intent of the Legislature that 

§ 61-5-1 7(c) criminalize falsehoods to the police because § 61-5-1 7(a) 

does not. 

The Circuit Court made reference to State v. Srnsky, 213 W.Va. 412, 

582 S.E.2d 859 (2003) for the proposition that mere vocal actions could 
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hinder a law enforcement officer. (AR 4) That reference is correct as far 

as it goes. However, Smsky simply "addresses the narrow question of 

whether failure of a citizen to give one's name when asked by a law 

enforcement officer, without more, constitutes the offense of obstructing 

an officer." Dicta in the decision states that such a charge could be 

substantiated if there were an express statute requiring that a defendant 

do so. The Rule of Lenity requires that a defendant be charged with 

violating that statute before he or she is convicted of that violation. 

CONCLUSION 

The Circuit Court's order should be reversed, and this matter 

should be remanded with instructions to dismiss the matter.