IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA 


NO. 11-0587 

STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA, 

PlaintiffBelow, 
Respondent, 

v. 


LISA MARIE DAVIS, 


Defendant Below, 
Petitioner. 

SUMMARY RESPONSE TO THE PETITION FOR APPEAL 


I. 


RESPONSE TO THE PETITIONER'S STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. 	 STATEMENT OF FACTS 

The instant case involves a prosecution for obstructing an officer [W. Va. Code § 61-5-17 (a)] 

. which originated in the Magistrate Court of Marion County. On August 13,2010, the Magistrate 

Court found Lisa Davis, hereafter referred to as "the Petitioner," guilty ofthe aforementioned crime. 

(App. at 2.) Magistrate Melissa Pride Linger subsequently sentenced the Petitioner to pay court costs 

of one hundred sixty:-five dollars and eighty cents ($165.80) plus ten days in jail, with full credit 

given for time served. The Defendant appealed on August 17, 2010. (Id.) 

On November 24, 2010, a bench trial was held before Hon. Fred L. Fox, II, Senior Status 

Judge, and by order entered March 1, 2011, the Circuit Court of Marion County affirmed the 

magistrate court. (ld. at 1.) The court made several findings of fact regarding the Petitioner's 



conduct, and those findings are unopposed by the Petitioner's Counsel, and remains unopposed on 

appeal. (Id.) 

The following is the relevant portion ofthe circuit court's finding offact: 

3. At the bench Trial before the Circuit Court, the State called Marion County 
Deputy Sheriff Christopher F. Gearde to testify. He testified that on May 26,2011, 
he went to the Defendant's residence in Marion County to execute an arrest warrant 
upon Phillip Moran for Violation of home confinement in a felony case. The 
Defendant and Phillip Moran were romantically linked at the time and Mr. Moran has 
given the Defendant's residence as his own address. While standing on the front 
porch, Deputy Gearde asked the Defendant ifMr. Moran was inside the residence. 
The Defendant denied his presence in the home. This exchange repeated multiple 
times. Another deputy then heard a noise within the structure and advised Deputy 
Gearde. Upon Deputy Gearde entering the residence, the Defendant then admitted 
that Phillip Moran was there. Mr. Moran was found in the residence and taken into 
custody. Deputy Gerade noted that the Defendant was not abusive and made no 
physical act to oppose him. The Defendant did not dispute Deputy's testimony. 

(Id at 2-3.) (Emphasis added.) 

Deputy Sheriff Gearde testified (with questioning by the prosecution): 

A. Okay. We actually parked a distance down from the residence, and we walked 
up to the residence. It is a single-wide trailer. We got down to the trailer - - I got 
down to the front door, Corporal Love goes around to the back side of the trailer in 
case he tries to escape, if he is in there. So we go down there, and I knock and 
announce, and there is a vehicle there. I cannot remember what type of vehicle it 
was, that we were told would be there, but that vehicle was there. We knocked, and 
it took her a few minutes before she answered the door, Ms. Davis. And when she 
did answer the door, she appeared very nervous, so I told her why we were there, and 
asked if I could step in. She said, yes. I said, ma'am, we're looking for Phillip 
Moran. We're looking for your boyfriend. I said, your know, we have a capias, 
failure to appear warrant, that needs to be served, and you know, we need to - - you 
know, we need to take him in and get this taken care of. 

Well, she was adamantly denying that she hadn't seen him in a certain 
amount oftime, and she didn't know where he was. Meanwhile, Deputy Love was 
around the backside of the trailer watching the trailer, and he could hear someone 
inside banging aroUnd against the wall, which is in the back bedroom end of the 
bedroom. There is always the bedroom in the single-wide trailers. He could hear you 
know, someone banging around there, so they told Deputy Jeremy Evans, and Deputy 
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Evans came around and told me, he said, Hey someone's back there. So I told her, 
I said ma'am, you need to be honest with me. I said, you know, I find out he's here, 
I said you're going to be arrested, and you're going to be charged with obstructing. 
You know, youjustneed to be honest with me now tell me ifhe is here (sic). Well, 
she adamantly denied it. 

So, as I started to walk toward the back bedroom, because I heard a loud 
thump, as I started to walk towards the back bedroom she said, well, he's back there. 
So then we went back there, and I believe he had a knife. He was in the closet. He 
didn't come at us with a knife, but he did have a knife in the closet. Then we took 
him into custody. 

Ms. Davis was charged with obstructing because she hindered my 
investigation. 

Q. 	 And she basically told you several times before you actually were in the 
process of going back to get Mr. Moran that he wasn't there? 

A. Correct. 

(ld. at 11-13.) (Emphasis added.) 

The Petitioner appealed from only one issue, raised at the circuit court bench trial. (Pet. at 

3-4.) That issue is whether the Petitioner's conviction for obstruction under W. Va. Code §61-5

17(a) (obstructing an officer) should be reversed, because, as the Petitioner contends, she should 

have been charged under W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(c) (making a false statement to an officer). 

II. 

ARGUMENT 

A. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT OF MARION COUNTY DID NOT ERR WHEN IT 
CONVICTED THE PETITIONER OF OBSTRUCTION, PURSUANT TO W. 
VA. CODE SECTION 61-5-17(a). 

W. Va. Code § 61-5-17 provides; in pertinent part: 

(a) Any person who by threats, menaces, acts or otherwise, forcibly or 
illegally hinders or obstructs, or attempts to hinder or obstruct, any law enforcement 
officer acting in his or her official capacity it guilty ofa misdemeanor. 

3 



(c) Any person who with intent to impede or obstruct a law-enforcement 
officer in the conduct ofan investigation ofa felony offense, knowingly and willfully 
makes a materially false statement, is guilty of a misdemeanor . . . However the 
provisions of this section do not apply to statements made by a spouse, parent, 
stepparent, grandparent, sibling, half-sibling, child, stepchild or grandchild, whether 
related by blood or marriage, or the person WIder investigation. 

While this Court has never directly addressed the differences in parts ( a) and (c) of West 

Virginia's obstruction statute, this Court has addressed certain elements relating to obstruction. 

Moreover, while sparse, other states' courts have provided rulings that are directly applicable to the 

case at bar. 

Starting at home, in State v. Johnson, 134 W. Va. 357, 59 S.E.2d 485 (1950), this Court 

concluded that actual force or violence is not a necessary element of the crime of obstructing an 

officer as defined by West Virginia Code § 61-5-17(a). This Court stated in Johnson that "[t]he 

words 'forcibly' or 'illegally' used in the statute clearly mean any unlawful interference with the 

officer in the discharge ofhis official duties, whether or not force be actually present." 134 W. Va. 

at 360,59 S.E.2d at 487. Thus, while the statute in question employs the word "forcibly," force need 

not be present for the commission of the crime of obstruction. 

This Court, despite having previously held that refusal to identify oneself, standing alone, 

does not constitute obstruction l
, explained in State v. Srnsky, 213 W. Va. 412, 582 S.E.2d 859 

(2003), that the Withholding of information from a police officer may constitute obstruction for a 

conviction WIder W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(a). State v. Srnsky, 213 W. Va. at 414,582 S.E.2d at 861. 

lIn State ex reI. Wilmoth v. Gustke, 179 W. Va. 771, 373 S.E.2d 484 (1988), this Court 
concluded that "when done in an orderly manner, merely questioning or remonstr~ting with an 
officer while he or she is performing his or her duty, does not ordinarily constitute the offense of 
obstructing an officer." (Id. at 773,373 S.E.2d at 486.) 
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The Petitioner dismisses the circuit court's conclusion oflawthat Srnsky indicated that "mere 

vocal actions could hinder a law-enforcement officer." (App. at 4.) The Petitioner contends that 

Srnsky "simply 'addresses the narrow question of whether failure of a citizen to give one's name 

when asked by a law enforcement officer, without more, constitutes the offense of obstructing an 

officer. '" (pet'r's Br. at 8.) Here, the Petitioner ignores Syl. Pt. 4 in Srnsky, supra., which states 

that: 

The charge ofobstructing an officer may be substantiated when a citizen does 
not supply identification when required to do so by express statutory direction or 
when the refusal occurs after a law enforcement officer has communicated the reason 
why the citizen's name is being sought in relation to the officer's official duties. 

Thus, mere vocal actions may constitute a hindrance to a law enforcement officer attempting 

to act in his or her official capacity. That the Srnsky Court further elaborates on this later in its 

decision (the Petitioner suggests this is dicta) is irrelevant, as the Court speaks through its syllabus 

points. 

While West Virginia case law thus supplies some guidance in the present matter, a survey 

of other courts' decisions under similar factual circumstances provides this court clear direction. 

In Duke v. State, 423 S.E.2d 427 (Ga. 1992)(applying Ga. Code Ann. § 16-10-24(a))2, the 

court affirmed the misdemeanor obstruction conviction of a Defendant who, when a police officer 

went to her home with a warrant for the arrest of another individual, knowingly lied by informing 

them that the arrestee was not there. The court rejected the Defendant's argument that because she 

2Ga. Code Ann. § 16-1 0-24(a) (2011) provides in pertinent part: 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b) of this Code section, a person who 
knowingly and willfully obstructs or hinders any law enforcement officer in the lawful discharge of 
his official duties is guilty of a misdemeanor. 
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merely lied to the officers and did not employ words which could be construed as forcible resistance 

or opposition to the officers, the evidence was insufficient to authorize her conviction.3 The court 

noted that the applicable statute no longer required evidence ofa forcible resistance, and it overruled 

earlier cases to the extent that they held otherwise. 

In Turner v. Jones, 415 F. App'x 196, 199 (11 th Cir. 2011)" United States Eleventh Circuit 

Court of Appeals revisited Ga. Code Ann. § 16-10-24(a). That court detennined that "verbal 

exchanges without threats offorce and violence can authorize a conviction under [the misdemeanor 

obstruction] statute." (Citation omitted.) Furthermore, the court in Hudson v. State, 218 S.E.2d 905 

(Ga. 1975) (applying Ga~ Code Ann. § 26-2505), affirmed the obstructing an officer conviction of 

a Defendant who initially gave the officer a false name and then apparently refused to show his 

driver's license. The court also affirmed the obstruction conviction ofa second Defendant, the first 

Defendant's mother, who initially told the officer that the first Defendant was gone, when she knew 

he was actually on the premises. Thus, as the Georgia courts have concluded, mere verbal 

.exchanges, including lying to a police officer, may constitute obstruction for purposes committing 

the crime of obstructing an officer. Georgia courts are not alone in reaching this conclusion. 

3The Duke court further elaborated: 

Wilfully lying to an officer, who is attempting to execute an arrest warrant, as to the present 
location of the arrestee does not constitute a mere verbal exchange. As verbal threats offorce and 
violence can hinder an officer and authorize a felony conviction under existing OCGA § 
16-1 0-24(b), lying with the intent ofmisdirecting him as to the performance ofhis official duties can 
certainly constitute a hinderance and authorize a misdemeanor conviction under existing OCGA § 
16-10-24(a). 

Duke v. State 423 S.E.2d at 428 (1992). 
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The court in Caines v. State, 500 So.2d 728 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 2d Dist. 1987) (applying Fla. 

Stat. Ann. § 843.02 (1985)t, ina prosecution under a statute making it an offense to obstruct or 

oppose a public officer without violence, affirmed the conviction of a Defendant who gave a false 

name and address to a police officer who had arrested the Defendant for theft, with the result that 

an information was filed against the wrong person. The court stated that the record clearly supported 

a finding that the Defendant obstructed the officer as he was carrying out the duties ofpursuing a 

criminal investigation and processing the Defendant's arrest. Declaring that it seemed obvious that 

one who gives an officer false identification under the circumstances of the instant case is 

"hindering" the officer's performance of duties, the court declined to follow z.P. v. State, 440 So. 

2d 601 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 3d Dist. 1983), § 8[b], a delinquency proceeding where the court 

questioned whether a minor's giving ofa false name to an arresting officer would constitute a crime. 

500 So.2d at 729. 

Conversely, in State v. Stephens, 387 N.E.2d 252 (1 st Dist. Hamilton County, Ohio 1978) 

(applying Ohio Rev. Code Ann. §2921.31 (A)), the court reversed the conviction ofa Defendant who 

lied to officers. There, the Defendant merely falsely told police officers that she did not know, and 

had never seen, the person for whom the police officers had an arrest warrant, where an officer then 

received word that person was in the Defendant's basement, and where the officers then went in and 

4Fla. Stat. Ann. § 843.02 (West 2011) provides: 

Whoever shall resist, obstruct, or oppose any officer as defmed in s. 943.10(1), (2), (3), (6), 
(7), (8), or (9); member ofthe Parole Commission or any administrative aide or supervisor employed 
by the commission; county probation officer; parole and probation supervisor; personnel or 
representative ofthe Department ofLaw Enforcement; or other person legally authorized to execute 
process in the execution of legal process or in the lawful execution of any legal duty, without 
offering or doing violence to the person of the officer, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083. 
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arrested the person. The Stephens court thus concluded that to be an act which "hampers or impedes 

a public official, a Defendant's act must substantially stop an officer's progress." Courts following 

Stephens have further elaborated that there must be some "substantial stoppage" of the officer's 

progress before one can sayan officer was hampered or impeded. 

Close inspection renders Stephens inapposite for two reasons. The first is that the statute in 

Stephens, much like statutes in other similar cases where courts have found that the singular act of 

lying to an officer did not rise to the level ofobstruction5, requires an act which actually causes an 

impediment, hindrance, interruption, prevention, or delay. W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(a) does not 

require actual causation of a hindrance or obstruction.6 Mere attempts to hinder or obstruct are 

enough to merit conviction under W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(a). 

The Respondent further argues that Stephens is inapposite is because in Stephens, the 

Defendant's statements, even iffalse, did not cause "substantial stoppage ofthe officer's progress." 

III fact, they had no effect whatsoever on the police pursuing the arrestee. The Defendant in Stephens 

did not impede or hamper the arresting officer fu his official duties. The Defendant's statements did 

5The court in People v. Dewlow, 369N.E.2d 270 (lst Dist. m. 1977)(applying Ill. Rev. Stat. 
ch. 38 § 31-1 (1975)), reversed the conviction ofa Defendant who falsely identified himselfas the 
stepbrother ofan arrested juvenile whom a police officer had determined should be released into the 
custody of a parent, guardian, or responsible adult. The court stated that the Defendant's 
misrepresentations did not constitute resistance or obstruction in that the officer did in fact release 
the juvenile to the custody ofhis court-appointed guardian without any interference on the part of 
the Defendant. 

60hio Rev. Code Ann. § 2921.31(A) (West 2011) provides: 

(A) No person, without privilege to do so and with purpose to prevent, obstruct, or delay the 
performance by a public official of any authorized act within the public official's official capacity, 
shall do any act that hampers or impedes a public official in the performance ofthe public official's 
lawful duties. 
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not actually stop the arresting officer's progress, because the officer had previously seen the arrestee 

fleeing the premises and called for backup to apprehend him. In the instant case, the Petitioner 

actually hindered and obstructed a police officer. The Petitioner, while standing on her front porch 

(factual similarity to Stephens noted), was asked by Deputy Gearde ifthe Petitioner's boyfriend was 

inside the residence. The Petitioner denied the fugitive's presence in the home. (App. at 2-3.) This 

exchange was repeated multiple times, and the Petitioner made repeated "adamant" denials to 

Deputy Gearde's line of questioning. (/d. at 11-13.) It was not until another deputy then heard a 

noise within the structure and advised Deputy Gearde, who then entered the residence. Only at that 

point in time did the Petitioner finally admit to Deputy Gearde that her boyfriend was in fact inside 

the residence. Thus, the Petitioner's repeated, adamant lies to Deputy Gearde caused the police 

"substantial stoppage of progress," and obstructed a police officer acting in his official capacity. 

These repeated, adamant denials to Deputy Gearde are more than a singular "materially false 

statement," as spelled out in W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(c), and thus rise to the level ofobstructing a law 

enforcement officer acting in his or her official duty, as provided for in W. Va. Code § 61-5~17(a). 

Finally, there exists one curious case involving statutory construction, that is nevertheless 

distinguishable from the case at bar. In Wilbourn v. State, 164 So.2d 424 (Miss. 1964) (applying 

Miss. Code Ann. § 2294 (1942)), a case decided under a statute? making it an offense to attempt to 

? The statute, Miss. Code Ann. § 2294 (1942) provides: 

If any person or persons by threats or force, abuse or otherwise, attempt to intimidate or 
impede a judge, justice of the peace, juror, witness, prosecuting or defense attorneys or any officer 
in the discharge ofhis duties or to obstruct or impede the administration ofjustice in any court, he 
shall, upon conviction, be punished by imprisonment in the county jail, not less than one month, nor 
more than six months and by fme not exceeding three ·hundred dollars. 
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intimidate or impede an officer in the discharge of duties by threats, force, abuse, or otherwise, the 

court reversed the conviction of a defendant who made a false statement to a sheriff during the 

course ofan investigation ofa crime that was calculated to mislead the officer. The court stated such 

an "utterance, being unaccompanied by threat, force, or abuse, was not violative of the statute," in 

that "[t]he phrase 'or otherwise' referred to acts or stratagem of the same general nature as the 

preceding 'threats, force or abuse,''' and that it "indicat[ ed] acts common to or characteristic of the 

preceding group of words, or an approximation" ofthem. Wilbourn,164 So.2d at 426. 

Wilbourn is distinguishable from the instant case because ofthe inherent differences in the 

two statutes. The Wilbourn court was merely observing that the word "otherwise" in the Mississippi 

statute did not function as a catch-all, because the word "otherwise" was clearly modified by the 

preceding phrase "threats or force," the immediately preceding word "abuse," and proceeding phrase 

"attempt to intimidate or impede." Thus, for practical purposes, a mere utterance or ''vocal action" 

(to use the circuit court's phrase), could not alone trigger the use of the operative word "otherwise" 

under the Mississippi statute. However, in W. Va. § 61-5-17(a) the phrase "acts or otherwise" 

clearly operates as an catch-all phrase, not limited by the presence of the preceding two words 

"threats, menaces." Thus, in the instant case, "acts" functions to include actions that are not 

necessarily threatening or menacing in nature, including the behavior for which the Petitioner was 

arrested and convicted. As previously noted, this Court has held that while such obstructing acts 

may not include the ''mere questioning or remonstrating with an officer," this Court has found that: 

the charge of obstructing an officer may be substantiated when a citizen does not 
supply identification when required to do so by express statutory direction or when 
the refusal occurs after a law enforcement officer has communicated the reason why 
the citizen's name is being sought in relation to the officer's official duties. 

Syl. Pt. 4 State v. Srusky, 213 W. Va. 412, 582 S.E.2d 859. 
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Therefore. the Petitioner's conduct, specifically her repeated "adamant" lies to a law-enforcement 

officer acting in his official capacity, was an "act" forbidden by W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(a). Thus, 

W. Va. Code § 61-5-17(a) was clearly the correct statute under which to convict the Petitioner, and 

case law from this Court and courts ofother jurisdiction support the Petitioner's conviction. 

III. 


CONCLUSION 


The Petitioner's assignment of error is without merit. Her conviction should be affirmed.